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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Built in 1900, the Hotze House is one of Little Rock's most important historic
structures. The house has undergone few alterations and appears much the same as
when Peter Hotze lived there. The architect, Charles L. Thompson, designed the
Hotze House in a combination of two architectural styles, Georgian Revival and
Beaux Arts Classicism.

The two and one-half storey house with a full basement is constructed of brick.

The high hipped roof, as characteristic of Georgian Revival architecture, is topped
with a flat deck. Projecting from the roof are several dormers, spaced symetri-
cally about the house. The cornice is marked by decorative brackets and dentils.

The facade of the house is marked by windows which feature ornate cut stone window
heads of label molding with keystones. Lugsills are also of cut stone. The dominant
feature of the facade is the two storey portico, supported by two pairs of fluted
Ionic capital columns. The round flat roofed portico is marked by ornamental
brackets and dentils on the cornice. The main entry door with a broken pediment
head of cut stone is flanked by fluted Ionic capital pilasters. Extending from
the north and south sides of the portico is a granite railing with urn-shaped
balusters set between square posts. The entry features a wood and glass storm
door and a decorative and heavy wrought iron main door. Three dormers project
from the roof above the facade. The central dormer has a broken pediment head,
similar to the one over the entry, while the other two are gabled.

Two features of note on the south elevation are the porch and solarium. A one
storey, flat roofed porch, supported by fluted Ionic capital columns, is bordered
by wooden railings with turned balusters. Filling in the southeast angle of the
house is a one storey solarium.  Narrow hexagonal panes of leaded glass compose
the walls of this flat roofed projection. Both the north and south elevations
have twin gabled dormers with round arched windows, identical to those in the
dormers on the facade.

Found on the north elevation is a two storey projection. The first floor porch
contains steps leading to the north entry. Window heads on the rear north elevation
are much simpler than those on the rest of the house, consisting of arches with
radiating voussoirs.

The east elevation features a three storey porch suppofted by five square brick
columns. Open at the basement level, the porch is enclosed by lattice work at
first and second floor levels.

Though the exterior is interesting for its juxtaposition of two architectural
styles, it is no match for the rich interiors. Craftmanship abounds in the
interiors of highly carved Honduran mahogany woodwork, wall coverings of silk and
velvet and stenciled ceilings. Parkay wood flooring is found on most of the first
floor with the second storey floor of oak. Lighting fixtures are dual gas and
electric. Of special note is the dining room with cut velvet wall coverings

set between a cornice and panelled wainscot of quarter-sawn oak.
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According to local tradition, the interiors were designed by Tiffany Studios of

New York. A few years ago, the curator of wallpaper for the Smithsonian Institution,
toured the Hotze House and it was her opinion that Tiffany probably did design

the interiors.

There are approximately 8,200 square feet of living space in the two floors.

The main floor has a large entry hall, library, dining room, reception room and a
divided parlor. The stairway is located at the point where the side and front hall
meet. Constructed of Honduran mahogany, the stairway is three flights with a
double landing. The east end of the main floor contains a two room kitchen, a

back stairway and an electric elevator.

The upstairs has a large hallway off of which are five bedrooms, a large study,
billard room and four bathrooms. In the stairlanding area, is a section elevated
by a few steps. This is reputed to have been a feature of the house built to
accommodate an orchestra during the numerous large parties given in the house.

The only alteration made to the house has been the removal of a wall between two
servants rooms and the addition of a bathroom, both in the east section of the
second floor.

The Hotze House is one of the finer homes remaining in the state which expresses
the opulence of the period in which it was constructed, particularly in the
interiors, which are extraordinarily rich in quality. Resting on three and
one-half lots, the Hotze House is remarkably well preserved and appears practi-
cally the same as when it was first constructed.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Hotze House, located in Little Rock's historic Quapaw Quater district, was
built by one of Arkansas' most successful and prominent businessmen. The Hotze
family is representative of the many European immigrants who settled in Arkansas
during the nineteenth century. The house is indicative of the exceptional financial
success of Peter Hotze. The Hotze House is also architecturally significant in

its elegance and fine detail of design. Designed by Charles L. Thompson,

Little Rock's most prominent architect and constructed in 1900, the house

reflects the Beaux Arts tradition. The interior was reputed to have been

designed by Tiffany Studios of New York. The house has been remarkably well
preserved and remains practially unaltered.

Peter Hotze was born in Innsbruck, Austria on Octéber 12, 1836, the son of
Wolfgang Reinart and Mary Sophia Hotze. He was young at the time of his
father's death, but Mrs. Hotze's inheritance made it possible for her three
sons to attend the University of Innsbruck. At his mother's death in 1856,
Peter Hotze and his brother Conrad emigrated to America. The other brother
Frederick, remained in Austria and became a field marshal in the Austrian
army, following in the footsteps of another Hotze relative who had been an
Austrian military commander in the Napoleonic wars.

In 1857 Peter Hotze moved to Little Rock and went into the general merchandise
business. In 1860, at the age of twenty-four, he valued his personal property
at forty-five hundred dollars, which was a substantial sum for the times.

Hotze joined the Capital Guards, the most famous of the local military companies,
and when the Civil War broke out in the spring of 1861, this company became
Company A of the Sixth Arkansas Infantry Regiment, Confederate Army. Among the
battles the company fought in were Shiloh, Chicamauga, and Murfreesboro. At

the battle of Franklin, Tennessee in April, 1864, Hotze was wounded and cap-
tured and was sent as a prisoner of war to Camp Chase, Ohio, where he remained
until the end of the war.

Before he left Little Rock, Hotze buried five-thousand dollars in gold. Fol-
lowing his instructions, Hotze's brother Conrad, who had established a prominent
law practice in Cleveland, Ohio, dug up the money and took it to Ohio. There
the money was used to pay Peter Hotze's creditors. Presumably, these were

debts for merchandise he had sold in his store. Such accounts usually were

paid annually but the war had interrupted communications and made it difficult
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or impossible for these debts to be collected. Most southerners declared
that the war had cancelled all their debts in the north, and public sentiment
was so strong against sending money to the enemy that Conrad Hotze had to
handle the transaction with the greatest secrecy. Peter Hotze had contracted
the debts in good faith and his honesty compelled him to pay his creditors,
in spite of the risk involved.

Returning to Little Rock after the war, Hotze went into a business as a
merchant in partnership with Capt. John G. Fletcher, who had been his company
commander. Each man put $2,500 into the business. After a while, they
limited their business exclusively to the cotton trade. Other than a good
business ability, the great success of Fletcher and Hotze may be attributed

to two things. One was the fact that they aimed at the New York market at a
time when most southerners were trading in New Orleans, St. Louis or
Cincinnatti. The other was that Peter Hotze's payments of his debts under

the most adverse circumstances during the war had given him such a reputa-
tion for integrity that his credit in the north was virtually unlimited. In
1873 it was decided that Hotze should move to New York to handle that end of
the firm's business. Fletcher was to buy the cotton in Little Rock and Hotze
to sell it in New York. Hotze became one of the leading figures in the cotton
business in New York. He lived there for 27 years, in a fashionable neighbor-
hood near Central Park.

In 1900, by mutual agreement, the partnership of Fletcher and Holtze was
disolved and both men retired. Throughout the years Fletcher and Hotze
existed, there was never any written agreement between them, each man having
absolute confidence in the trust worthiness of the other.

With his retirement, Hotze returned to Little Rock. He had always felt his
interest centered in the city. In 1868 he had married Johanna Krause, whose
sister married Capt. Fletcher. The Hotze's had three children, Sophia, Clara
and Frederick. Mrs. Hotze died while they were living in New York.

Peter Hotze had become a very wealthy man since last living in Little Rock and
upon his return in 1900 he built the large house in which he lived with his
dauthter Clara and son Frederick until his death on April 12, 1901. Hotze
could have afforded to build the house anywhere he chose. Some of the most
prominent lots in the city were offered to him but he chose to build his home
directly behind the small frame house he had built about 1869 and lived in
during his previous residence in Little Rock. The contrast between his two
homes is indicative of Peter Hotze's business success.
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The son, Frederick, was educated at Yale and the law school of the University
of Virginia but the management of the Hotze estate always took precedence over
his law practice. Frederick Hotze lived in the house until his death on
September 30, 1972.

Peter Hotze was one of the most respected and honored citizens in Little Rock.
He actively supported the Democratic party and was always an advocate of free
trade. For an extended period, he was identified with the Board of Trade of

Little Rock.

The Hotze House stands as a monument to a man who upon arriving in a new country,
established a flourishing business, became a leading factor in the commercial
development of Little Rock, and came to be one of Little Rock's most admired
citizens. The Hotze House is representative of his characteristic ability to

be a powerful factor in economic development as well as cultural development.
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